
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

REGION 4 
SAM Nt;NN 


ATLA~'!A rtDERAL CENTER 

61 FORSYTH STREET 


ATLANTA GEORGIA 10}OJ-l<:Y&O 


OEC, .1.' lCI~ 

CERTIfIED MAIL 
RETl)RN RECEIPT REQL;ESTED 

Mr_Sc:otl Pounds 
BASE Catalysts LLC 
1800 East President Sm.'Cl 
Savannah. Georgia 31404 

SlJBJECT: 	 BASF Catalysts LLC 
Consent Agreement and Final Order 
Docket No. EPCRA-04.2011-2U13(b) 

Dear Mr. Pounds: 

Enclosed please find an executed copy of the Consent Agreement and Final Order 
(CAFO) that resolves the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act of 1986 
{EPCRA) malter (Docket No. EPCRA-04.2011-2013(b)) involving BASF Catalyst, LtC The 
CI\fO \-vas met! with the Regional Hearing Clerk. a'l required by 40 C.F ,R. Part 22 and became 
eficctivto: on the date of the ttHng, 

AJso enclosed, please lind a copy of the "Notice of Securities and Exchange Commission 
Regis.trants' Duty to Disclose Environmental Legal Proceedings." This document puts you on 
notice of your potential duty to discluse to the Security and Exchange C ommlssion (SEC) any 
environmentai enforcement actions taken by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). If 
you have any questions with regards to the SEC's enviromhcntat disclosure requirements. you 
may rder to the contact phone number at the hottom oflhe SEC Notice. 

If you have any questions, please call Mr. Vinson Poole: at (404) 562-9186. 

Since ely, 1Jr.1r 
C J';n . Fakoner, Chief 
Ii/eRA Enforcement S~ction 

Enclosures 

Intarrat Address fURL). http://www.epa.gov 
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECIION AGENCY .. ,
REGION 4 '_ 

IN THE MATTER OF: ) . , 
) " 

BASF COrp<lration ) Docket Number: El'CRA.04-201l·2013(b)' . 
) 

Respondent ) 

------- ---..--~) 

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL OROEE 

I. Natl.!re of the Ac.tion 

1. This is a civil penalty proceeding pursuant to Section 109 of the Comprehensive 
Enviromnental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA), as amended, 42 U,S.C. 
§ 9609 and Section 325 of the Emergency Planning and C<Jmrnunity Right·ta·Know Act 
(EPCRA), 42 U.S,C. § 11045 and pursuant to the Consolidated Rules ofprnctice Governing 
Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties, and the RcvocationlTennination or Suspension of 
Pennits (Consolidated Rules), codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 22. Complainant is the Director of the 
Air, Pesticides and Toxics Management Division, Region 4. United States Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA), Respondent is BASf' CQrporation, 

2, Complainant and Respondent have conferred for the purpose of settlement 
pursuant to 40 CF.R, § 22, 18(b) and desire to re.,oivc this matter and settle the allegations 
described herein without a fonnal hearing. Therefore, without the taking of any evidence Of 

testimony. the making of any argument, or the adjudication ofany issue in this matter, and in 
accordance "1th 40 C,F.R. §§ 22.13(b) and 22.l8(b). this Consent Agreement and Final Order 
(CAFO) will simultaneously commence and conclude this matter, 

ll, Prelit:pinarv Statements 

3, The authority to take action under Section 109 ofCERCLA, 42 U.S,C, § 9609 and 
Section 325 ofEPCRA. 42 U,S,C § 11045, i. vested in the Administrator of EPA. 'The 
AdministralOrofEPA has delegated this authority under CERCLA and under EPCRA to the 
Regional Administrators by EPA Delegations 14·31 !\Jld 22-3-A, both dated May 11, 1994. The 
Regional Administrator) Region 4, hns rcdelegated to the Director, Alr, Pesticides and Tox.ics 
Maruagemeot Division, the authority under CERCLA by EPA Region 4 Delegation 14-31 dated 
March 8,1999. and updated August 6, 2004, and the allthority under EPCRA by EPA Regioll4 
Delegation 22-3~A. dated November 8, 11}94, Pursuant to these delegations, the Director of the 
Air, Pesticides and Toxics ~1anagement Divi:'lon has the authority to commence an enforcement 
action as the Complainant in this matter. 

4. Respondent is a corporation doing business in the State of Georgia. 



5. Respondent is a "person" as defined in Section 329{7) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. 
§ 11049(7) aad Section 101(21) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9601(21). 

6. Respondent has a "facility" as that term is defined by Section 101 (9) ofCERCLA, 
42 U.S.C. § 9601(9) and by Section 329(4) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 11049(4), 

7. Rvspondent's facility is located at 1800 E~t President Street, Savannah, Georgia. 

8. Rvspondent is an "owner or operator" of the facility a<; that term is defined by 
Sectiun 101(20)(A) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S ,C. § 9601(20)(A). 

III. EPA's Allegations ofViolatioQB 

9. Sectioll102(a) ofCERCLA, 42 U.s.c. § 9602(a), required the Adminj''lraIOr of 
EPA to publish a list ofsubstances uesignated as hazaruous suhstances Which, when released 
into tM environment, may present substantial danger to public health or welfare or the 
environment and lo promulgate regulations establishing the quantity of any hazardous substance 
the reJca.<re of whieh was required to be reported under Section 103(a) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C, 
§ 9603(a}. EPA has published and amended such a list, including the t:orresponding re-portable 
quantities (RQ) for those substances. This list which is codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 302, was 
initially published on April 4, 1985 (50 Fed. Reg. 13474) and is periodically amended. 

10. Section 103(a) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.c. § %03(a), and the regulations found al 
40 C.F,R. § 302.6, require a person in charge ofa facllity or vessel to immediately notify the 
National Response Center (NRC), a::; soon a'l he or she has knowledge ofa release ofa hazardous 
substance irom such facility or vesseJ in an amount equal to, or greater than the RQ. 

11. Respondent was in charge of1he facility during the relevant ""riod descrihed 
below. 

12. Sulfuric add is Il "hazardous substafll ..'C·' as that term is delined by Section 
101(14) of CERCLA, 42 U.s.C. § 9601 (14), with an RQ of! ,000 pounds, as specified in 
40 GER. § 302.4. 

13. On May 25, 2010, Respondent bad a release of sulfuric acid above the RQ .t the 
facility. 

14. EPA alleges that Respondent violated the noitficatlun requirements of Section 
103(a) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9603(a), by failing 10 inuuediately notify the ]'iRC as SQon as 
Respundent had knowledge of the release of sulfuric acid in an amount equaJ to or greater than 
its RQ at Respondent's faciJily and is thercitH'e subject to the assessment of penalties under 
Seetion 1090fCERCLA, 42 I1.S.c. § 9609. 
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l5, Pummnt to Section 109 ofCERCLA, 42 U.s,C. § 9609, lilld 40 C,FR Part 19, 
EPA may assess a penalty not to exceed $37.500 for ea;.;h violation of Section J03(a) of 
CERCLA,42 U,S.c' § 9603(a), dillt occurred after January 12, 2009, Each day a violation of 
Section 103 continues cowt1tutes a separate violation. Civil penalties under Section 109 of 
CERCLA, 42 U.S.C, § 9609, may be assessed by Administrative Order, 

Violations of Section 304(a) of EPCRA 

16. Section 304(.) ofEI'C~ 42 U.S,C, §IIOO4(a) and the regulations found at 
40 C.P.R. § 355, Subpart C. require the O\\ller or operator of a facility at which hazardous 
chemicals arc produced. u.~ed or stored. 10 immediately notify the State Emergency Response 
Commission (SERC) and Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC) when there has been a 
release of a CERCLA hazardous substance or an EPCRA extremely hazardous substance in an 
amount equal to or greater than the RQ, 

17. Respondent was the Q'wner or operator of the facility during the relevant period, 
described below, 

,g, At all times relevant to this matter, the faciJity produced, used, or ::.1:ored 
"hazardous chemicals" as delined under Section 311(e) ofEPCR-A, 42 U.S.C. § I 1021 (e) and 
under 29 C,F-R. § 19l0.1200(c), 

19, Sulfuric acid is an "extremely hazardous substance'l as that term is defined by 
Section 329(3) of EPCRA, 42 U.s,C, § 11049(3), with an RQ of 1,000 pounds, as specified in 
40 C'.F.R- Patt 355, Apps. A & B. 

20, On May 25, 20 I 0, Respondent had a releMc of sulfuric acid above the RQ at the 
facility, 

21, Respondent violated the nmifiCfltion requirements of SecLion 304(a) ofEPCRA. 
42 U,S,c' § 11000(a), by failing to immediately notify the SERC and LEPC as soon as 
Respondent had knowledge of the reiea.<)e of suffnric acid in an amount equal to or greater than 
the RQ at Respondent's facility, and is therefore subject to the assessment of penalties under 
Section 325 of EPCRA, 42 U.s,C, §11045, 

22. Pursuant to Section 325(b) ofEPCRA, 42 l:.S,c' § 11045(b), and 40 C.F,R. 
Part 19, EPA may a<;sess a J1cnalty of not more than $37500 for each violation of Sections 
304(a) and (e) of EPCRA, 42 LJ.S,c' § lI004(a)(e), that occurred after January 12,2009, Civil 
penalties under Section 325(b) ofEPCRA, 42 U,S,c, § II 045(b), may be assessed by 
Administrative Order, 

23. For the purposes of this CAFO. Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations 
set Out above bot neither admits nor denies the factual allegations set (Jut above. 
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24, Re:;pondent waives allY right to contest the allegations and its right to appeal the 
proposed Final Order accompanying the Consent Agreement. 

25. Respondent consents to the assessment ofand agrees to pay the civil penalty as. 
set forth in this CAFO. 

26. Respondent certifies thai. as of the date of its execution of this CAFO, it is in 
compliance with aU relcvam requjrements of CERCLA and EPCRA, 

27. Compliance with the CAPO shall resolve the allegations of violations contained 
herein. This CAFO shall 110t otherwise affect any liability of Re:):pondent to the United States 
othe·r tban as expressed herein. Neither EPA nor Cumplainant waives any right to bring an 
enforcement action against Respondent for violation of any federal or state Sk'ltute. regulation or 
permit, to initiate an action for imminent and substantial endangerment. or to pursue criminal 
enforcement. 

28. Complainant and Respondent agree to settle this matter by their ex:ccution oftbis 
CAFO. The partie!'! agree that the settlement of this matter is in the public interest and that this 
CAFO is consistent with the applicable requirements ofCERCLA and EPCRA. 

V. ~l Order 

29. Respondent shall pay a civil penalty ofTWO THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED 
DOLLARS ($2.900) for the CERCLA violation which shall be paid within thirty (30) days of the 
efiective date of this CAPO. 

30. Respondent shall pay the CERCLA civil penalty by forwarding a cashier's or 
certified check, payable to "EPA I Ia7..ardous Substance Superfund" to one of the following 
addresses: 

BYMAtL BY OVERNIGl!I 
U.S, Environmental Protection Agency U.S. lJank 
Superfund Payments Altention: Natalie Pearson (314) 418-4087 
Cincinnati Finance Center 1005 Convention Plaza 
P.O. Box 979U76 Mail Station SL-MO-C2GL 

St. J.ouis. Missouri 63 t97-9000 St. Louis, Missouri 63101 


The check shall reference on its face the name and the Docket Number of the CAFO. 

31. Respondent ,hall pay lhe eivil penally o!'TWO THOUSAND NINE mlNDRED 
DOLLARS ($2.900) for lhe EPCRA violation, which shall be paid within thirty (30) days of the 
cllcciive date ofthi, CAFO. 

32. Respondent shall pay the EPCRA penalty by forwarding a cashier~s or certified 
check payable to "Treasurer, United States of America,'" to one of the following addresses: 
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BY MAIL llY OVERNIGHT 
U.S, Environmental Protection Agency U.s. Bank 
Fine~ and Penalties Attention: Natalie P""",on (314) 418-4087 
Cincinnati Finance Center 1005 Convention Plaz. 
P.O. Box 979077 Mail Station SlrMO-C2GL 

St. Louis, Miswuri 63197-9000 St. Low", Missouri 63101 


The check shall reference on it, fuce the name and the Docket ~umhcr "fthe CAFO. 

33. At the time ofpayment, Respondent shall send a separate copy of each check. and 
a \.vritten statement that payment has been made in accordance "lith this CAFO, to the following 
JX,-'TWflS at the foilowlug addresses: 

Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S. W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Vinsou Poole 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Air. Pesticides & Toxics t"fm18gement Division 
61 Forsyth Street, S. W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Saundl Wilson 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Office of Environmental Accountability 
61 Forsyth Street, S. w. 

34, For the purposes ofstate and federal income taxes> Respondent shall not be 
entitled, and agrees not to attempt, to claim a deduction for any civil penalty payment made 
pursuant to this eAFO. Auy attempt by Respondent to deduct any such payments !:)hall 
constitute a violation of this CAFO. 

35. Pursuant to 31 U.S.c. § 3717, EPA is entitled to assess interest and penalties on 
debts owed to the United States and a charge to cover the cost ofprocessing and handling a 
delinquent claim. fmerest will therefore begin to .lc(..lUe OD the civil penally from the effective 
date of this CAFO if the penalty is not paid by the date required. Interest will be assessed at the 
rate established by the Secretary ofTreasury pursuant to 31 U.S.c. § 3717. A charge will he 
assessed to cover the costs ofdebt collection, including processing and handling costs and 
attorney fees. In addition. a penalty charge will be assessed on any portion of the debt that 
remains delinquent more than ninety (90) days after payment is due. 

36. Complainant and Respondent shall bear their own costs and attorney fees in this 
matter. 
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37. This CAFO shan be binding upon the Respondent, its successors, and assigns. 

38. The following individual is authorized to receive service for EPA in this 
proceeding; 

Caron B. Falconer 
U.s. EPA, Region 4 
Air j Pesticides & Toxics Management Division 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 
(404) 562·8451 

39. Each undersigned representative of the parties to this CAPO certifie8 that he or 
,he is fully authorized by tlte party represented to enler into this CAFO ""d legally hind that 
party to it. 

THIS SECTION INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
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VI. liffective Date 

4Q. The effective date of this CAFO shaU be the date on which the CAFO is filed wit" 
tlle Regional Hearing Clerk. 

AGREED MD CONSENTED TO: 

U.S. Envirorunental Protection Agency 

Ry:jid~Mi7uJhLiI~~_ Date:j'/I'f/1.rJlD 
Beverly H~iste~15irectoi.'r U., 

Air, Pesticides & Toxics 

Management Division 

Region 4 

,..L..",4 .~ 

Susan B. Schub 
Regional Judicial Officer 
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CERTIFICA TR OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that I have this day served a true and correct c.opy ofthe foregoing 

Consent Agreement and Final Order, In tbc Matter ofBASF Corporation. Docket 

No. EPCRA 04-2011-2013(]i). on the parties listed below in the manner indicated: 

Caron B. Falconer (Vi. EPA's internal mail) 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Air, Pesticides & Toxies Management Division 
61 Forsyth Street 

Atlanta, GA 30303 


Robert Caplan (Via EPA's internal mail) 
U.s. EPA. Region 4 
Office of Environmental Ac(".()untability 
61 Forsyth Street 

Atlanta, GA 30303 


Mr. Scott Pounds (Certified Mail - Rerum Receipt Requested) 
BASF Catalysts LLC 
1800 East President Street 
Savannah, Georgia 31404 

Date: IJ~lS:::Jo _._..""'.~~~;tU-~!!tA~a"...'
Patricia A. BulJock, Regional Hearing C er 
United States Environmental 
Protection Agency, Region 4 
Atlanta Federal Center 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, GA 30303 
(404) 562-9511 
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EPA ACCOUN1:S RECEIVABLE CONTROL NUMBER FOIIM 


m 8E CQItIPLEIl!l! !lY mE OJIIGI!'!AT!NG OFfICE· 
(Attach *copy olU-ftIIII order 1M t~ r.u.. ta 0tttnd:uIdRc....1f'AaIt) 

t'Watonaw.w''''; "'s_._u_n_d_i_W_i_l_._on____~.=---------' '" I:Altr/r.dt .... 

.n*l'''-' 

~m. ._.g~i_O_n_4 __~~_____________________~(404)582~'904._0_R_C_._O_EA_____ __ 

lOfJke) \ (Tdfpikll N......) 

o N.....sFJ_o..IoOC__ 
USAO C01l.II."C:n 

IV I ~~Aarr 
FMO COI.lJ!(."I"S PAYMENT 

.. 

o o ""' __Oil 

o 
o 

[-=:J O'.l111.........C........ r r 

o 'l'lIkiua a.r-n,h. 

ll'nd 

n.c... __, __...t.",?,-"UC:..Jtc:.\-_tfl,-,-'""J",O,-,!I_"d{J=i-"5:..c(",b
L
) _________ 

n.s.s~ ~~•• .....___________________________________ 

.. .:.: 
1'!wDMS~ ........hCOlllmlNwaberic____________Ilaia______ 


-

t. 	 DdtT~om. OrI.' ...om.(EADt 
'Eatll IIII~ 'Sedirila DrsfpW .......om. 
n.,.' r ffIl~JUll",
'.0.""11.8 i *1HIIIdlIIII~ 
WaN a' ,D-C. ZWt4 

t. 0lI14e ',()(ftq--""" J. 
< 


